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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

MAY 23, 2016 
DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

HDP-2016-0276 
1126 CHICON STREET 

 
PROPOSAL 

Demolish a ca. 1939 house. 
 
ARCHITECTURE 

One-story, rectangular-plan, front-gabled frame house with a partial-width, front-gabled, 
wraparound porch; single and paired 1:1 fenestration with ornamental 3:1 wood screens. 
RESEARCH 

It is believed that the house dates from 1939, given the siding type and the design of the 
attic vent on the front of the house.  It is clear that the house has been remodeled over time, 
including the construction of the wraparound porch (probably in 1976 by the Urban 
Renewal Agency); the porch does not appear on the 1962 Sanborn map. 
The house has had a series of renters throughout its history.  The first tenants were 
Subiner Curtis and Leon and Mary A. Miller (at 1126½ Chicon Street).  Subiner Curtis was 
a maid; she lived here from around 1939 to around 1947. 
Ananias James, an African-American city policeman, owned this house in the late 1940s 
and early 1950s until his death in 1955.  He had previously lived on Cole Street with a wife 
named Rachel.  Apparently, he and Rachel divorced around 1947 – she continued to live at 
their former residence on E. 13th Street while Ananias moved into this house with a new 
wife, Arlevia. 
The house was vacant in the mid-1950s, then used as a rental property for the next several 
decades.  Tenants included a handyman at Jefferson Chemical, a cook, a shipping clerk, 
and a retired couple. 
STAFF COMMENTS 

The house is not listed in any City survey. 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Encourage rehabilitation and adaptive re-use; the house appears to be in good condition, 
and while it has had modifications over the years, it represents a typical East Austin house 
style of its period in terms of scale, materials, and design.  However, there does not be 
sufficient justification to initiate a historic zoning case for this house, so staff recommends 
completion of a City of Austin Documentation Package, consisting of photographs of all 
elevations, a dimensioned sketch plan, and a narrative history, for archiving at the Austin 
History Center, should the Commission vote to release the permit. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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1126 Chicon Street 
ca. 1939 

 
 
 

OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
1126 Chicon Street 

 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
April, 2016 
 
1992  The address is not listed in the directory. 
 
1985-86 Charlene Vaughn, renter 
  No occupation listed 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Charlene Vaughn was a new resident at this 
address. 

 
1981  Mary Rodriguez, renter 
  No occupation listed 
 
1977  Joe and Mary Rangel, renters 
  Retired 
 
1973  Berneice Edwards, owner 
  No occupation listed 
 
1968  John G. and Ivory Evans, renters 
  Shipping clerk, Remington-Rand, office machines, 1003 W. 6th Street. 
 
1962  John G. and Ivory Evans, renters 
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  Cook, Sheppard’s King Pin Restaurant, 119 W. 7th Street. 
 
1959  Frank E. and Jewel Sanders, renters 
  Handyman, Jefferson Chemical, 7114 N. Lamar Boulevard. 
 
1955  Vacant 

NOTE:  Ananias James is not listed in the directory. Rachel E. James is listed at 
1600 E. 13th Street; she was a teacher in the County schools. 

 
1952  Ananias James, owner 

City policeman 
NOTE:  Rachel E. James is listed at 1600 E. 13th Street; she was a teacher in the 
county schools. 
 

1949  Ananias and Arlevia James, owners 
City policeman 
NOTE:  Rachel E. James is listed at 1600 E. 13th Street; she was a supervisor in 
the county schools. 

 
1947  Josephine Martin, renter 
  No occupation listed 
  ½: Subiner Curtis, renter 
   No occupation listed 

NOTE:  Ananais and Rachel James are listed at 2806 Cole Street; he was a city 
policeman. 

 
1944-45 Dora Conley, renter 

No occupation listed 
  ½: Savannah Curtis, renter 
   Maid 
 
1941  Subiner Curtis, renter 
  Maid 
  ½: Leon and Mary A. Miller, renters 
   Storekeeper, LCRA 
 
1939  Subiner Curtis, renter 
  No occupation listed 
  ½: Leon and Mary Miller, renters 
   No occupation listed 
 
It is believed that the current house dates from 1939.  The 1935 Sanborn map shows two small 
houses on this site; the 1962 map shows a house that corresponds in size, but without the front 
porch.  There is a utility connection permit for this address dating from 1939.  
 
The following listings from the city directories are believed to correspond to the two small 
houses shown on the 1935 Sanborn map: 
 
1937  Arthur and Ella Arnold, renters 

No occupation listed 
½: Leon and Mary A. Miller, renters 
 No occupation listed 
NOTE:  Subiner Curtis is not listed in the directory. 
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1935  George Hillendha, renter 
  No occupation listed 
  ½: Ester M. Pease, renter 
   No occupation listed 
 
1932-33 Edward and Susie Mathis, renters 
  No occupation listed 
 
1930-31 Edward and Susie Mathis (colored), renters 

No occupation listed 
 
1929  Nero and Arkie Kindred (colored), renters 
  Engine wiper, Southern Pacific Railroad 
   

Edward and Susie Matthews (colored), renters 
No occupation listed 

 
1927  Isaiah and Viola Norwood (colored), renters 
  No occupation listed 
 
1924  Robert and Lela Johnson (colored), renters 
  No occupation listed 
 
1922  Samuel and Fannie Miller (colored), renters 
  Miller, Marks Grain Company, grain, hay and feed, 200-10 E. 4th Street. 
 
1920  J.A.G. and Lily Jackson (colored), renters 
  Laborer 
 
1918  J.A.G. and Lillie Jackson (colored), renters 
  Janitor, Scarbrough Building 
 
1916  J.A.G. Jackson (colored) 
  Butler, Samuel L. Crawford, 800 Lavaca Street. 

NOTE:  Samuel L. Crawford was the president of Crawford-Gosho, cotton 
exporters, 501 Scarbrough Building. 

 
1914  Turner Pender (colored) 
  Expressman, Houston and Texas Central Railroad passenger station. 

NOTE:  James A.G. Jackson is listed as a porter at the University Club, 2304 
San Antonio Street; he lived at 1703 East Avenue. 

 
1912-13 The address is not listed in the directory. 

NOTE:  Turner Pender is listed at 1802 Washington Avenue; he was an 
expressman. 

 
BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES 
Subiner Curtis (ca. 1939 – ca. 1946) 
The 1940 U.S. Census shows Sabine Curtis as the renter of 1126 Chicon Street.  She was a 
47-year old African-American widow who had been born in Texas and worked as a maid in a 
private home.  With her lived her son, Clarence Jackson, 14, and her father, Jim Martin, 72, 
both of whom had been born in Texas, and neither of whom had an occupation listed.. 
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At 1126½ Chicon Street was Leon and Mary Miller, who rented the house.  Leon Miller was 31, 
had been born in Texas, and was a laborer in dam construction. Mary N. Miller was 29, had 
been born in Texas, and had no occupation listed.  They had 4 children: Leon, Jr., 6; Betty 
Jean, 4; Wilie Mae, 2; and Johnnie, 1.  All the children had been born in Texas.  With them lived 
Leon’s mother, Pearlie Miller, a 60-year old Texas-born widow with no occupation listed. 
 

 
Death notice for Subiner Curtis 

Austin American-Statesman, December 18, 1983 
 
Ananias James (ca. 1948 – ca. 1955) 
Ananias and Rachel James re listed in the 1940 U.S. Census as the owners of the house at 
1600 E. 13th Street, which was worth $3,500.  Ananias James was 57, had been born in Texas, 
and was a city policeman.  Rachel James was 45, had been born in Texas, and was a teacher 
in the county schools.  With them lived Rachel’s sister, Hattie McConico, 23, who had been born 
in Texas and was a maid in a private home.  Hattie had lived in rural Williamson County, Texas 
in 1935. 
 
The 1930 U.S. Census shows A.N. and Rachel E. James as the owners of the house at 1500 E. 
13th Street, which was worth $4,000.  A.N. James was 48, and was a city policeman.  Rachel E. 
James was 33, and was a public school teacher.  They had a son, Vernon, 16, who had no 
occupation listed. 
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News story on the shooting death of Ananias James 

Austin American, January 4, 1955 
 

 
Obituary of Rachel James, the first wife of Ananias James 

Austin American-Statesman, July 28, 1994 
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Sewer connection application by Minnie Clark for this address (1939) 

 
 

 
Building permit to Bertha Johnson to move a house on the lot and demolish a house on the lot 

(1947).  It is unclear whether either of the houses referenced here is the current house. 
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Building permit to Bertha Johnson to construct a frame house (1947) 

 

 
Building permit to Thomas James to demolish a garage (1966), and to the Urban Renewal 

Agency to remodel the house (1976) 
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The 1935 Sanborn map shows two small houses on this site. 
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The 1962 Sanborn map shows the single house on this site, but without its wraparound porch. 

 
 
 
 

 


